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TOWN OF SOUTHWEST RANCHES, FLORIDA 
RFP – Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal 

RFP No. 17-003 
 

ADDENDUM 1 
 
Please note that Proposers are required to acknowledge receipt of Addendum 1 on the Addenda Acknowledgement 
form. Failure to acknowledge all addenda may be cause for rejection of the Proposal. 
 
Provided below are responses to questions asked during the March 2, 2017 pre-proposal meeting and received 
subsequent to the meeting. A copy of the meeting attendee list is attached. A revised Price Form is also being 
provided as part of this addenda. All final questions regarding RFP No. 17-003 must be submitted as stated in the 
RFP no later than 4:00 p.m. on March 17, 2017. 
 
Questions and Answers 
 

1. In reference to Current Services, Fees and tonnage on RFP page 12.  The RFP references the following 
disposal and processing facilities. Will the awarded franchise hauler be required to use these same 
facilities for the solid waste, bulk waste, yard waste and recycling materials disposal and processing as 
listed? 
Bulk and Yard-LGL currently takes bulk and Yard Waste to the following facilities: 

-Southwest Ranches Location - Sterling Road and SW 196 Street 
-Pompano Beach Location - 3831 Powerline 
-Pembroke Pines Location - 2701 Pembroke Road 
-Coconut Creek Location - 2700 Wiles Road 

Solid Waste-GL delivered Solid Waste to: 
-Davie Location - 122380 College Avenue, Transferred to JED Landfill 

Recyclables – delivered to: 
-Sun 2 Pompano Beach - 2281 NW 16th Street, Pompano Beach, FL 

 
Answer: The selected Proposer (Contractor) will be responsible for processing and disposal of Bulk 
Waste as part of this franchise agreement. Proposers must include in their proposals the facilities at 
which Bulk Trash and Yard Trash will be processed and disposed.  
 
The Designated Disposal Facility and Designated MRF listed in the RFP are not correct. Page 12 of the 
RFP and Section 10 of the draft franchise agreement (Page 16) shall be revised to reflect the designated 
facilities listed below. The Contractor will be required to deliver Solid Waste and Recyclables to these 
respective facilities until the Town’s disposal and recyclables processing contract expires in July 2018. 
The designated facilities may change when the Town enters into a new disposal and recyclables 
processing agreement. 
Designated Disposal Facility – 2380 College Avenue, Davie, FL 
Designated MRF – 1750 SW 43rd Terrace, Deerfield Beach, FL 

 
2. In reference to Table 3 Current Commercial Rates on RFP page 13. Do the collection rates and disposal 

rates listed in this table include the 10% franchise fees to be paid to the City?   
 
Answer: No, they do not. In addition, the Price Form submitted with a Proposal is to exclude the 10% 
franchise fee. Also, the 10% franchise fee is permitted to be identified separately on the commercial 
customer invoice. 
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3. In reference to section D on RFP page 16. It appears that the information in section D was omitted or 

purposely left blank.  Will the City clarify if section D was intentionally left blank or provide updated 
information for section D? 
 
Answer:  When converting the RFP to a PDF document, portions of the RFP appear to have been omitted 
in the PDF document. A corrected PDF of the RFP is being provided with this Addendum. 
 

4. In reference to section IV Submittal Requirements item A on RFP page 17.  It appears that the 
information in section A was omitted or purposely left blank.  Will the City clarify if section D was 
intentionally left blank or provide updated information for section A. 
 
Answer:  See response to Question 3. 
 

5. In reference to items on RFP page 18.  It appears that the information in section was omitted or 
purposely left blank.  The page begins with Item c and there was not item a or b listed on previous page.  
Will the City clarify if the information on this page was omitted or provide updated information for 
page? 
 
Answer:  See response to Question 3. 
 

6. The Town has provided route day schedules for solid waste, recycling and bulk/yard waste in Attachment 
B.  Will the contractor be required to continue the same schedule of service days as detailed in 
Attachment B or will the contractor have the option to create different routing day schedules?  
 
The Town would like to maintain the current route schedule if possible. If the Proposer wishes to alter 
the schedule, the Proposer should clearly explain the benefits to the Town of doing so. 
 

7. Will the Town consider allowing Bulk Waste collection on both Solid Waste collection days? 
 

Answer:  No, on the weeks that Bulk Waste is collected, it must be collected on the first Solid Waste 
collection day of that week. 

 
8. When completing Commercial Price Form Page 4 should the proposer include the 10% franchise fee in 

its bid rates for collection? 
 
Answer:  No, the franchise fee should not be included in the commercial prices that Proposers provide on 
the Price Form.  

 
9. In reference to RFP document page 20 Section j) financial statements.  It states that the financial 

statements may be provide in a separate envelope.  Is a separate envelope required or can the proposer 
add the financial statements to this section without using an envelope 
 
Answer:  No, financial statements do not need to be provided in a separate envelope. If a separate 
envelope is not utilized, such financial statements will be treated as public record. 
 

10. RFP page 14 Table 4 Tonnage Data - In the RFP price form the Town has established the generation 
factor per home the Town will pay the Contractor for residential disposal. 
Solid Waste generation factor is 1.28 tons per home per year 
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Bulk Waste generation factor is 3.73 tons per home per year 
Total RFP generation is 5.01 tons per home per year  
Over the past 4 years the tonnage volumes in the Town have increased over 4,000 tons.  2016 residential 
tonnage brings the total generation factor to 5.87 tons per home per year. 
Will the Town consider using the most recent generation factor for this RFP? 
Does the Town anticipate any future incidents that would lower the generation factor to the levels listed 
in the RFP?? 

 
Answer:  The generation factors under the new contract will remain as stated in the RFP and Price Form. 
The Town believes that using the four-year average better reflects the fluctuation in tonnage that occurs. 
In addition and as noted in Question 13 of this addendum, the Town is removing construction and 
demolition debris generated by home improvement projects from the definition of Bulk Trash. 

 
11. The contract renewal language in the draft franchise agreement differs from the RFP, which is correct? 

 
Answer:  The language in the draft franchise agreement is correct. The Contract will automatically renew 
for one additional five-year period unless either party provides the other party with written notice of non-
renewal at least one year prior to conclusion of the first Contract term. 

 
12. Who bills the customer for the extra carts? 

 
Answer:  The Contractor – See Section 6.B(4) and Section 6.C(2) of the draft franchise agreement, 
Attachment A of the RFP. 

 
13. Is construction and demolition debris part of Bulk Trash?  

 
Answer:  The Town has decided to remove construction and demolition debris generated by home 
improvement projects from the definition of Bulk Trash. The Bulk Trash definition in the draft franchise 
agreement shall be revised as follows: 
“Bulk Trash means those wastes that may require special handling and management and which by reason 
of bulk, shape, or weight cannot be placed in a container. Bulk Trash includes, but is not limited to, 
furniture and fixtures, mattresses, White Goods, equipment, and any and all household goods that are 
customary to ordinary housekeeping operations of a Residential Service Unit. Bulk Trash must be 
generated by the customer at the Residential Service Unit at which the Bulk Trash is placed for 
Collection. Bulk Trash does not include Construction and Demolition Debris, Contractor-Generated 
Waste, or Exempt Waste.” 
 
In addition, Section 3.A of the draft franchise agreement is revised as follows: 
“Exclusive Contract.  The CONTRACTOR is herein granted an exclusive Contract to provide 
Residential Collection Service and Commercial Collection Service within the TOWN.  The 
CONTRACTOR is not granted the exclusive right to collect C&D Debris.  The CONTRACTOR may 
provide C&D Debris services at competitive rates that shall not be controlled by this Contract.” 

 
14. What action is taken regarding illegal dumping and nursery waste? 

 
Answer:  The Town takes code enforcement action when illegal dumping occurs and the property 
owner is held responsible. The Town also takes code enforcement action if a nursery places waste from 
the nursery business curbside as part of residential Bulk Waste 
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15. Are multiple households allowed to combine piles of Bulk Waste? 
 

Answer:  Yes, there are a few locations where because of space limitations (such as cul-de-sacs) 
residents combine their Bulk Waste into a single large pile. The Town will work the residents and 
Contractor to identify these locations.  

 
16. Under proposal content, service transition history (page 18 of RFP), a list of service transition in 

Florida during the last two years is required. Would the Town consider increasing this timeframe? 
 

Answer:  Yes, Proposers should provide the requested information as stated in the RFP. If a Proposer 
does not have at least three transitions during the last two years, then the Proposer should provide the 
requested information for its most recent three service transitions. 

 
17. Who do customers contact regarding inquiries or complaints? 

 
Answer:  The Contractor – See Section 19 of the draft franchise agreement. 

 
18. Does the Town require a particular format for the proposal security? 

 
Answer:  No – As stated in Section IV.B.5(k) of the RFP (page 21), the proposal security shall be in the 
form of a bond provided by a surety company authorized to do business in Florida, certified check, 
cashier’s check, or irrevocable letter of credit.   

 
19. What is the anticipated schedule for review, presentations and award? 

 
Answer:  The Town has not established a set schedule, but plans to review proposals, conduct any 
desired presentations, and submit the Selection Committee’s rankings to the Town Council as 
expeditiously as possible. Because the draft franchise agreement is provided as part of the RFP and 
Proposers must note any exceptions they wish to take regarding this agreement, the Town anticipates that 
a final agreement will be negotiated quickly once the Town Council selects a Proposer for contract 
negotiation. 

 
20. RFP page 47 Price Form page 5 - The Town is requesting a price for solid waste collection on 

unscheduled service day (following customer request and approval of service fee).  Can the Town have 
two options for this price request?  One for toter carts and one for bags and garbage cans?  The cost for 
either service is different depending on collection method. 
 
Answer:  Yes, a revised price form is provided as part of this addendum. 

 
21. RFP Section III Scope of Services (b) MSW service option #2, is there a limit to the number of extra carts 

a resident can have?   
 

Answer:  No, but the draft franchise agreement provides for payment to the Contractor for extra carts and 
for servicing extra Solid Waste Carts (see Section 6.B(4) and Section 6.C(2) of the draft franchise 
agreement).. 

 
22. What is the statutory authority for requesting not-to-exceed commercial recycling rates? 
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Answer:  According to Section 403.7046(3), F.S., a local government may not require a commercial 
establishment that generates source-separated recovered materials to sell or otherwise convey its 
recovered materials to the local government or to a facility designated by the local government, nor may 
the local government restrict such a generator’s right to sell or otherwise convey such recovered 
materials to any properly certified recovered materials dealer who has satisfied the requirements of this 
section. It further states that a local government may not enact any ordinance that prevents such a dealer 
from entering into a contract with a commercial establishment to purchase, collect, transport, process, or 
receive source-separated recovered materials.  

 
Requiring the selected Contractor to provide not-to-exceed commercial recycling service rates in no way 
requires commercial establishments to utilize the Contractor’s services or any other company’s services 
for commercial recycling, nor does it limit the ability of the Contractor or any other recycling company 
from operating within the Town. 

 
23. Can the Town provide a current list of commercial accounts?  

 
Answer:  A copy of the September 2016 commercial customer list is attached. The current contractor 
invoices a month in advance; therefore, this list reflects rates as adjusted on October 1, 2016. 

 
24. Will the Town provide a list of residential customers or will the Contractor need to develop a database 

from scratch? 
 

Answer:  The Town will provide the Contractor with a list of residential units that includes the parcel 
folio number, address, and number of Residential Service Units. The Contractor shall utilize this list to 
track and maintain current information for each Residential Service Unit as required in the Contract 
including, but not limited to, the route on which the unit is serviced; size and serial number of Solid 
Waste and Recycling Carts; size and serial number of all extra Solid Waste and Recycling Carts; and 
work order number, date, status, and any extra service fees billed by the Contractor for any deliveries, 
removals, exchanges, repairs, warranty recovery, and any other information necessary to manage cart 
assets.  

 
25. Section 4.B(1) of the draft franchise agreement (page 7) requires the Contractor to provide service to the 

Town for an additional 180 days beyond Contract expiration under certain circumstances. Will the Town 
consider allowing a rate adjustment for the period as would normally have occurred on October 1?   

 
Answer:  Yes, Section 4.B(1) of the draft franchise agreement will be revised as follows: 
“Should the TOWN choose not to exercise the renewal option of this Contract or should no renewal 
options remain, the TOWN anticipates awarding a new contract at least six (6) months prior to the 
expiration of this Contract or any subsequent renewals.  In the event a new contract has not been awarded 
within such time frame, the CONTRACTOR agrees to provide service to the TOWN for up to an 
additional one hundred and eighty (180) day period beyond the expiration of the Contract, provided the 
TOWN requests said services, in writing, at such time. The service rates for this additional period will be 
adjusted as they normally would on October 1 as specified in Sections 12 and 13 of this Contract.” 
 

26. Is it possible to sync the rate adjustments of the collection franchise agreement and the Town’s disposal 
agreement so rates need only be changed once per year?   
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Answer:  The Town plans to make that change in the next disposal agreement after the current agreement 
expires in July 2018. Until that time, the Solid Waste disposal elements of the service rates will be 
adjusted when the disposal fee is adjusted pursuant to the Town’s existing disposal agreement. 

 
27. Is the Town willing to have residents select their preferred Solid Waste Cart size prior to assembly and 

distribution of the carts?  
 

Answer:  Yes, if a Proposer wishes to include such survey as part of the transition, Proposer should 
explain this as part of its Technical Proposal. 
 

28. RFP page 15 section III (B) – In service option 2 automated service, is the Contractor required to 
service bags that are placed on the ground next to the carts in either the solid waste or recycling 
automated collection?  Servicing extra bags on the ground next to the carts defeats the advantages of the 
automated collection system. 
 
No, if Option 2 is selected, uncarted materials would only be collected as part of Bulk Waste. 
 

29. RFP pg.23 – Proposer Information. Is this form requesting the Broward County Business Tax Receipt 
information? 
 
Answer:  Yes, Broward County business tax receipt information is required and a current State of Florida 
annual report filing, if applicable.  
 

30. RFP page 24 – Proposer Confirmation of Qualifications states for Contractor licenses and license 
numbers required for the work in this RFP to be attached.  What other licenses are needed? 
 
Answer:  This is a standard form used by the Town. Proposers should be aware of any licenses required 
to conduct the work specified in the RFP. 
 

31. RFP page 48 Price Form page 4 – On the commercial price sheet can the Town modify this form so that 
the 10% Franchise Fee is a separate line item?  Also, can the Town supply an example of how it wants 
the 10% franchise fee calculated? 
 
Answer:  See response to Question 8. Proposers should not include the franchise fee in prices included 
on the Price Form. The franchise fee will be added to these service rates and will be equal to 10% of the 
total Commercial Collection Service fees, including collection and disposal elements, charged and 
collected. 
 

32. RFP page 49 Price Form 5 – Can the Town confirm that there is no franchise fee applied to commercial 
recycling service. 
 
Answer:  No franchise fee is to be applied to commercial recycling service. 
 

33. Contract page 12 – Customer provided containers do not appear to be restricted in terms of weight when 
loaded. Will the Town impose a weight limit of 50 lbs. as is customary? 
 
Answer:  Section 5.A(2) on page 8 of the draft franchise agreement states that Customer-provided 
containers shall not have a capacity of more than 40 gallons. The Town will also add that Customer-
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provided containers shall not weigh more than 50 pounds. This applies only to Customer-provided 
containers that are manually serviced, not to Roll Carts. 
 

34. Contract p. 29 – There is no definition of failure to complete a route for purposes of liquidated damages. 
A definition is needed to differentiate from a missed pickup. Will the Town consider defining a failure to 
complete a route as missing 5% of the total number of stops on the route? 
 
Answer:  Section 21.A(21) of the draft franchise agreement shall be revised to read “Failure or neglect to 
complete more than 95 percent of each route (number of missed pickups must be less than 5 percent of 
total customers on that daily route to be considered more than 95 percent complete) on the regularly 
scheduled Collection day without justifiable cause or prior approval by the Contract Administrator.” 
 

35. Contract p. 41 – This provision as written would apply to all of Florida and possibly outside the State. 
We believe that geographic location, density of routes, proximity to disposal locations, traffic patterns 
and other factors are relevant to the pricing that we charge to governmental entities for collection 
services. We request this provision be deleted or if not, restricted to the geographic area of Broward 
County. 
 
Answer:  Section 51 of the draft franchise agreement shall be revised to read: 
“In the event that CONTRACTOR offers another similarly sized governmental entity within the tri-
county region a contractual term, including but not limited to a pricing term, that TOWN, in its sole 
discretion, determines to be more favorable, CONTRACTOR shall agree to modify this instant Contract 
to conform with the more favorable term.” 
 

Attachments: 
 March 2, 2017 Pre-Proposal Meeting Attendee List 

Commercial Customer List – September 2016 
 
 Revised Price Form – provided as separate Excel file 
   Corrected copy of RFP – provided as separate PDF document 




















